ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 17, 2001
3:02 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Fred Dyson, Chair
Representative Peggy WIlson, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Sharon Ci ssna

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 197
"An Act relating to directives for personal health care services
and for nedical treatnment."”

- HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 21( HES)

Uging the United States Congress to extend the authorization
date for supplenmental block grants to the State of Alaska under
the Federal Tenporary Assistance to Needy Fam |ies Program

- MOVED CSSJR 21(HES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 173

"An Act relating to establishing a screening, tracking, and
intervention program related to the hearing ability of newborns
and infants; providing an exenption to licensure as an
audi ol ogist for <certain persons perform ng hearing screening
tests; relating to insurance coverage for newborn and infant
hearing screening; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 174

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- April 17, 2001



"An Act relating to nental health information and records; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 174 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 124

"An Act prohibiting nursing facilities and assisted |iving hones
from enploying or allowing access by persons wth certain
crim nal backgrounds, wth exceptions.™

- MOVED CSHB 124(HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 24

Uging the United States Congress to extend the authorization
date for supplenmental block grants to the State of Alaska under
t he Federal Tenporary Assistance to Needy Families Program

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 209

"An Act directing the Departnent of Health and Social Services
to establish a foster care transition program relating to that
program and providing for an effective date.™

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 84
"An Act relating to civil liability for energency aid."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 4/19/01

HOUSE BI LL NO. 112

"An Act relating to information and services available to
pregnant wonen and other persons; and ensuring infornmed consent
before an abortion nmay be performed, except in cases of nedica
enmer gency. "

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 4/19/01
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 197

SHORT TI TLE: HEALTH CARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) HUDSON

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
03/19/01 0649 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 17, 2001



EEEEE:

REFERRALS

HES, JUD

COSPONSOR( S) :  KERTTULA
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
<Bi || Postponed to 4/17>
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND FEDERAL TANF GRANTS
HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SOCI AL SERVI CES

SHORT TI TLE: SCREENI NG NEWBORNS FOR
REPRESENTATI VE( S) JOULE

03/19/01 0649
03/ 28/ 01 0762
04/ 10/ 01

04/ 10/ 01

04/ 17/ 01

BILL: SIR 21
SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
03/19/01 0717
03/19/01 0717
03/ 28/ 01

03/ 28/ 01

03/ 29/ 01 0857
03/ 29/ 01 0857
03/ 29/ 01 0857
04/ 11/01 1068
04/ 11/01 1073
04/ 11/01 1073
04/ 11/ 01 1073
04/ 11/01 1073
04/ 11/01 1073
04/ 11/01 1081
04/ 11/01 1081
04/ 11/01

04/ 12/ 01 0977
04/ 12/ 01 0977
04/ 17/ 01

BILL: HB 173
SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
03/12/01 0542

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(H

(H
(H

(H

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
HES
HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved CS(HES) Qut of
Commttee
M NUTE( HES)
HES RPT CS 4DP SAME Tl TLE
DP: GREEN, LEMAN, W LKEN
DAVI S
FN1: ZERQ( HSS)
RULES TO CALENDAR 4/11/01
READ THE SECOND TI ME
HES CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT
READ THE THI RD Tl ME CSSJR
21( HES)
PASSED Y18 N- E1 Al
TRANSM TTED TO (H)
VERSI ON:  CSSJR 21( HES)
RLS AT 10: 30 AM FAHRENKAMP
203
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
HES, FIN
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

HEARI NG ABI LI TY

Acti on
READ THE FI RST Tl ME -
REFERRALS

April 17, 2001



03/ 12/ 01 0542 (H)
03/ 13/ 01 0579 (H)
03/ 30/ 01 0794 (H)
04/ 17/ 01 1021 (H)
04/ 17/ 01 (H)

BILL: HB 174

HES, FIN
COSPONSOR( S):  SCALZI
COSPONSOR( S):  KERTTULA
COSPONSOR( S) :  MORGAN

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: MENTAL HEALTH | NFORVATI ON AND RECORDS
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF LEG BUDGET & AUDI T

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page

03/ 12/ 01 0543 (H)
03/ 12/ 01 0543 (H)
04/ 17/ 01 (H)
BILL: HB 124

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
HES, JUD
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: NURS. HOVE/ ASSI STED LI V. EMPLOYEES/ VI SI TOR
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) HALCRO

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
02/ 09/ 01 0282

~

02/ 09/ 01 0282
03/07/01 0501
03/15/01
03/15/01
03/15/01
03/19/01 0656
03/ 20/ 01
03/ 20/ 01
03/ 22/ 01
03/ 22/ 01
03/ 22/ 01
04/ 17/ 01

IIITITITTITIT 3

W TNESS REG STER

MELANI E LESH, St af f

to Representative Bill Hudson

Al aska State Legislature
Capi tol Buil di ng, Room 502
Juneau, Al aska 99801

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
HES, JUD
COSPONSOR('S): DYSON
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( HES)
COSPONSOR('S) : STEVENS
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
<Bi |l Cancel ed>
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( HES)
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor of

197.

SI QUX PLUMVER

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

April 17, 2001



Juneau End of Life Task Force

2551 Vista Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATENENT: Testified on behalf of the Juneau End of
Life Task Force and herself in favor of HB 197.

JANE DEMVERT, Executive Director

Al aska Commi ssi on on Agi ng

Departnent of Adm nistration

PO Box 110209

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 197.

MOLLY EI DEM

Long Term Care Qrbudsnman

3601 C Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Suzan Arnstrong in
support of HB 197.

JOHN MANLY, Staff

to Representative John Harris

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 513

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
Harris, sponsor of HIR 24 (the conpanion bill), presented SIR 21
and explained the differences between the House and Senate
ver si ons.

JI M NORDLUND, Director

Di vision of Public Assistance

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110640

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on SJR 21.

CHRI STI NE HESS, St aff

to Representative Reggie Joule

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 173.

KAREN PEARSQON, Director

D vision of Public Health
Department of Health & Social Services

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 17, 2001



PO Box 110610
Juneau, Al aska 99811
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed question on HB 173.

HEATHER ALLI O Par ent

3961 Portage Boul evard

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of herself on HB 173.

LI SA OVENS, Audi ol ogi st and Speech Pat hol ogi st
11935 Kristie Circle

Anchor age, Juneau 99503

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 173.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 416

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 174.

ELMER LI NDSTROM Speci al Assi st ant

O fice of the Conm ssi oner

Departnent of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, Al aska 99811

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 174 and HB 124.

ANNE HENRY, Special Projects Coordi nator

Division of Mental Health & Devel opnental Disabilities
Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110620

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 174.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Legi slative Audit Division

Al aska State Legislature

PO Box 113300

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 174.

KEVI N HAND, St af f

to Representative Andrew Hal cro
Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 414
Juneau, Al aska 99801

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 17, 2001



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor of HB
124.

ALl SON ELGEE, Deputy Comm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssi oner

Departnent of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 124.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-44, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:02 p.m
Menbers present at the call to order were Representatives Dyson,
Coghill, Stevens, and Joul e. Representati ves W1 son, Kohring,
and Cissna joined the neeting as it was in progress.

HB 197- HEALTH CARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES

CHAI R DYSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 197, "An Act relating to directives for personal
health care services and for nedical treatnment."”

Number 0019
MELANI E LESH, Staff to Representative Bill Hudson, Al aska State
Legi slature, cane forth on behalf of the sponsor of HB 197. She

read to the commttee a statenment witten by Representative
Hudson:

| was asked to support this legislation by people |

respect and who have |ong proved worthy  of
representing good causes. This cause | find to be
very civilized and humanitarian. You wll hear

testinmony from several persons in agencies that w sh
to enable others to give a voice to others who can no
| onger offer their own through the preparation of a
list of their wishes for their final days. This bill
expands the options for people who want to prepare
t hensel ves for when they can no | onger speak or act on

their own behal f. These expanded directives do not
interfere with the current statutes concerning |iving
wills and "do not resuscitate" orders. They sinply

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- April 17, 2001



provide for a form to be circulated with which the

patient[s] can determne what they wll need in
respect to their conforts - enotional, spiritual, and
physi cal . This bill wll enable agencies that assist
termnally ill patients by providing a docunent
contained in the bill that spells out choices for them
to consider with their famly and their |oved ones.
It is hope that this docunent will continue to gain

attention, as it has in 37 other states, and broach a
subject that is unconfortable for npbst of wus, but
necessary for all of us.

CHAI R DYSON asked what keeps people from doing this now.

MS. LESH responded that she would rather sonebody else spoke to
t hat . She said there are limted allowances in statutes now
that provide for living wills, but nothing sets forth a form
provi di ng choi ces and opti ons.

Nunmber 0300

SI QUX PLUMVER, Juneau End of Life Task Force, cane forth and
stated that [HB 197] is easily a piece of legislation that can
be supported by a variety of people in [Alaska]. She expl ai ned
that this enables the legislature to aid Al askans in having nore
clear and defined choices in how they want the end of their
lives to be. She said 35 other states have laws that have a
simlar concept. This is based on the Five Wshes, a docunent
of a few pages of statenents that talks about what a person
m ght want to think about and want the famly or doctor to know
when he or she is termnally ill. She stated that Five Wshes
was created by an organization out of Florida called Aging Wth
Dignity. The gentleman who forned the Five Wshes worked with
Mot her Theresa for several years. She added that the intent of
HB 197 is good public policy.

CHAI R DYSON asked why this needs to be in | aw

M5. PLUMMER responded that to her understanding this inproves
and expands existing state statutes so it is clearer as to what
the choices are. This aids soneone in thinking about these
things and legally enables himor her to do it.

CHAI R DYSON stated that the value of law is not to aid people in

t hi nking. He asked who would go to jail if soneone were to fil
this out and it was not followed through.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 17, 2001



M5. PLUMVER answered that she does not know of any |anguage in
this law or the new proposed law that would say that if it
weren't foll owed, sonmebody would go to [jail].

CHAI R DYSON asked why this should be put in |aw, then.

M5. PLUMMER replied that she thinks the Departnent of Health &
Social Services or the Departnent of Adm nistration mght have
sonme suggestions that it nerely be in regul ation.

CHAI R DYSON asked why the state needs to be involved in this.

M5. PLUMVER renmarked that she was hoping soneone from Aging Wth
Dignity could talk about what other states have done and why
this was put it into |law. She added that she wants to urge [the
| egislature] to wunderstand and support the concept and the
intent of [HB 197].

Number 0573

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS stated that he thinks Chair Dyson is
getting at a good point. He said he had just received from his
nother a power of attorney and a living will and would like to
know what [the proposed |egislation] would do that the power of
attorney and the living will do not do.

M5. PLUMMER stated that she believes this |anguage just expands
on what already exists and gives a greater clarity to what a
living will could include.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked if there is a contradiction anong
the living will, the power of attorney, and this [proposed]
form He asked what |egally would take precedence.

Nunber 0671

JANE DEMVERT, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion on Aging,
Department of Adm nistration, cane forth and stated, in response
to Representative Stevens' questions, that it mght be hel pful
to take a look at sone of the statenents that begin on page 13
of the bill. She said:

[ 1] j ust speak for nysel f as an individual.
Acknow edging that | will die is a hard thing to cone
to grips with; it's even harder to think about how -
to the extent that it could happen - | would like to
be cared for and treated when | can no |onger, through

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 17, 2001



a discussion like this, tell people what |'m seeking.
One of the steps that this takes is to - based on the
experience of people in many different settings now -
pose sone statenments here that would help nme ... to
anticipate the kinds of circunstances that | would
experience. And then to, based on that, say, "And
here's how I'd like you to support ne as |'m going
t hrough these | ast stages of ny life."

CHAI R DYSON asked what woul d take precedence and if this has any
| egal st anding.

M5. DEMMERT expl ained that there is a reference on page 17 about
how this woul d phase in. It states:

... a person who, by a statutory form power of
attorney executed under AS 13.26.332 before the
effective date of this Act, has been given powers to
make health care decisions under and consistent wth
authority set out in the repealed provisions, may
continue to exercise those powers under and consi stent
with the authority set out in the repeal ed provisions
until the appointnment nmade by the statutory form power
of attorney wth respect to health care services
term nates or is revoked.

M5. DEMVERT stated that she thinks this speaks to one of the
considerations in ternms of how this would articulate wth
current statutes.

Nunmber 0880

CHAIR DYSON renarked that there is no "or else.” He asked if
there is anything that binds the caregiver to obey it, besides
hel ping people think this through. He asked what the penalty
woul d be for disobedience.

M5. DEMVERT responded that she does not know. She asked,
"Phi | osophically, do you think there should be, if there' s not?"

CHAI R DYSON answered absolutely, if it is going to be put into
| aw.

V5. DEMVERT remarked that this is very interesting because it
brings together a nunber of provisions as well as charts sone
new ground. She said she believes everyone is thinking about
this in a nore conprehensive fashion.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- April 17, 2001



Number 0981

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA asked if this is a general power of
attorney. She said that would mean the person who has been
designated as having the power of attorney can do the things
that are listed here; therefore, there would be sone statutory
strength. She also asked if there are additional things in [the
proposed form beyond a normal power of attorney

V5. DEMVERT answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA remarked that she personally thinks this

is useful. She shared that her |ate husband had a power of
attorney and a living will, and one of the horrendous things she
went through was trying to figure out what he neant. She said

she can see a real need for trying to neke that very end
decision a clear one.

CHAIR DYSON stated that it certainly is a power of attorney and
covers a lot of things. He said that he suspects [the
commttee] will pass the bill and let [the House Judiciary
Standing Commttee] westle with whether or not there should be
a formin state | aw.

M5. LESH commented that Representative Hudson has acknow edged

that the directive could be maintained in the bill and that the
form could be brought about through a regulatory direction
through the |egislature. She said Representative Hudson was

willing to work with the national Dying with Dignity group
because there is sone legislation in other states that enables
the state agency to create the form with the direction of the
| egi sl ature. She added that Representative Hudson has also
westled with the idea that the formis being in the statute may
not be the best nethod.

Nunber 1245

CHAI R DYSON stated that he appreciates that. He remarked that
he is particularly interested in how the [nedical] industry
feel s when sonebody says, "I don't want pain killers,"” and yet
the whole tradition has been to make the patient confortable
He asked if [the industry] will be afraid of liabilities.

M5. PLUMVER stated that the Juneau End of Life Task Force is a

group of people that began talking with Representative Hudson
about this legislation. She said she also serves on the Hospice

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- April 17, 2001



Foundati on Board for Juneau, which endorses HB 197. She read
froma docunent fromthe Hospi ce Foundati on Board:

The neaning of HB 197 is really a gift to one's famly
menbers and friends so they won't have to guess what
you want . The Hospice and Honecare of Juneau's board
of directors urges approval of HB 197.

CHAI R DYSON remarked that the two tines he has been involved in
cases |like this, there weren't elderly people involved. He
noted that nothing has been put in [the bill] that refers to
chil dren.

M5. PLUMVER responded that those are the kinds of things that
people often include in their durable powers of attorney or
their wills. She said this is only addressing the very intinmte
end of |ife decisions a person nakes.

CHAI R DYSON stated that he is confused because page 2 [of the
bill] lists a Jlot of inportant things such as banking
transactions, real estate, clains, and litigation.

MS. LESH responded that those provisions stay in statute just as
they are. [House Bill 197] creates a new section that deals
with health care directives.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA stated that she is assumng the line here
is between the [the person the] power of attorney that is in
pl ace while the person in question is alive and the executor of
the will who is there after that transition.

M5. PLUMVER responded that sonetinmes it is the same person [who
is naned in the durable power of attorney], but that is up to
each i ndi vi dual

Nunber 1444

MOLLY  EI DEM Long Term Care Onbudsnman, testified via
tel econference on behalf of Suzan Arnstrong. She read to the
comm ttee:

The Ofice of the Long Term Care Onbudsman (OLTCO
supports HB 197, "An Act relating to directives for
per sonal health care services and for medi cal
treatnent.” Long Term Care Onbudsnen from around the
country have been extolling the benefits of Five
Wshes for sone time now Qur clients, the elderly of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- April 17, 2001



Al aska, need clear tool s, witten in specific
| anguage, that [direct] our health care providers and
others on how to admnister to our clients' final
needs. Too often, the OLTCO has attenpted to help
famly and friends struggling to determ ne what their
| oved one would want and not want, and having little,
if any, input fromthe elder. Sadly, acute conditions
that inhibit wrthwhile comunication or chronic
conditions such as denentia prevent our clients from
expressing their w shes and desires during their final
days and hours. The Five Wshes format would be a
priceless gift to all of our Al aska famlies and woul d
greatly enhance our capabilities to admnister to our
dyi ng Al askans' final w shes and to plan for our own.

Number 1529

CHAIR DYSON called for an at-ease at 3:28 p.m The neeting was
call ed back to order at 3:40 p.m

[HB 197 was held over. ]

SIJR 21- EXTEND FEDERAL TANF GRANTS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HIR 24, the conpanion bill.]

CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
CS FOR SENATE JO NT RESCLUTION NO 21(HES), Urging the United
St ates Congress to extend the authorization date for
suppl emental block grants to the State of Al aska under the
Federal Tenporary Assistance to Needy Fam |ies Program

Number 1650

JOHN MANLY, Staff to Representative John Harris, Al aska State
Legislature, canme forth on behalf of Representative Harris,
sponsor of HIJR 21, to explain SIJR 21. He stated that [SJR 21]
asks the federal government to continue the supplenmental funding
for the TANF (Tenporary Assistance to Needy Fam lies) program
which is about $6.9 mllion or about 30 percent of [Al aska's]

bl ock grant. He remarked that a nunber of states that were
either poor or growing faster than the national rate were
all owed this. He noted that according to the census figures,

[ Al aska] has grown by 14 percent since 1990. [ The suppl enment al
funding] is scheduled to expire the next federal fiscal year,
and the whole TANF authorization program expires a year after
t hat . He explained that this resolution asks for a one-year

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- April 17, 2001



extension so that when the program is reconsidered, [Al aska]
will be funded up to that point.

MR. MANLY explained that there are a few changes in the Senate
version from the House version of the resolution. The House
version had included the Head Start program in the list of
progranms and services that TANF funds cover. However, in the
Senate version, on page 2, line 10, that has been taken out.
The Senate version also added the President and the U S
Secretary to be the designated recipients of the resolution.

CHAI R DYSON asked why the legislature needs to be involved with
this.

Nunber 1753

JIM  NORDLUND, Di rector, Division of Public  Assistance,
Departnent of Health & Social Services (DHSS), cane forth and
stated that this is a resolution to Congress encouraging themto
continue the funding. This is wusing the "finesse" and the
authority of the legislature to deliver that nessage.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked, if the legislature did not pass a
resol uti on, whet her congress would [continue the funding].

MR. NORDLUND answered that this is a formal way of bringing
attention to the issue. He noted that [the resolution] wll be
fairly well received by Congress. There have already been 14
[US.] Senators who have witten letters to the President asking
for this extended funding, including Al aska's Senator Stevens.
It is supported by resolutions from the National Governor's
Association, and from the American Public Human Services
Associ ati on. He stated that there is broad support for this,
but lending the voice of [Alaska's] legislature wuld be
hel pful .

Nunber 1816

CHAIR DYSON stated that he thinks Representative Joule was
asking if this is the only way to nake this happen and that M.
Nordl und's response was, "No, but it would be useful." He asked
if the Knowl es Adm nistration has any other way of notifying the
U.S. governnent of the desire to have this funding continue.

MR. NORDLUND responded that [DHSS] has been working through the

Governor's office and the congressional delegation to get this
[ resol ution] through. He said it certainly would be hel pful if

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- April 17, 2001



the legislature would lend its voice as well. He added that
this coul d happen w thout the passage [of the resol ution].

MR. NORDLUND, in reply to a further question, explained that the
resolution states that "we" have commtted this funding for
vari ous prograns. If [Alaska] receives that $7 mllion cut to
the block grant, then "we" wll have to reach out to sone of
t hose agencies and figure out who can no |onger be funded. He
added that [Alaska] is facing a $14 nmillion deficit with TANF
funds for FY 2003. He said getting the supplenental funding
continued would plug a big hole in that deficit.

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Nordlund what the Senate's thinking was in
taki ng out Head Start.

MR. NORDLUND answered that it was [DHSS s] request. He stated
that [DHSS] is funding Head Start right now, however, it doesn't
seem proper. [DHSS] is presently under an audit, and the
| egi sl ature should not have extended TANF funding to the Head
Start program because it is not an allowable use under the
federal rights.

Number 1959

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA stated that it would seem to her that as
noney policy makers [legislators] should be weighing the costs
of all of these things, making resolutions on federal funds, and
knowi ng what they are.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL remarked that block grants are based on
the rolls of the tenporary assistance [ prograns]. He asked M.
Nordlund if, since [Alaskal] has gone down in the [nunber of
peopl e on tenporary assistance, [this resolution] is asking to
be held harm ess for the anmount [ Al aska] has gone down.

MR. NORDLUND responded that with the way the block grant was
structured when welfare reform passed, the deal in Congress was
that the entitlenent status for welfare would end, and states
woul d be given a set anount of noney. The states would have to
live with that amount of noney if the welfare casel oads go up;
if the caseloads go down, the states get to keep the noney,
regardl ess of the size of the casel oad. He stated that there
was one provision whereby states with high popul ations and the
poorer states would get a 2.5 percent bunp every year. [Al aska]
has been getting that "bunp" every year, regardless of what has
been happening with the casel oad. Since the casel oad has been
going down, the state has been able to keep that difference and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- April 17, 2001



use that funding for other purposes. He explained that in
[ Alaska] the child care program used to have about $10 million
in general fund (GF) noney. The federal TANF dollars that have
been saved have supplenented the G-, thereby helping to close
the fiscal gap.

Nunber 2078

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the grant itself wll be based
on the reauthorization of what [Al aska's] casel oad is.

MR. NORDLUND answered that "we" don't know that vyet. He stated
that this is a huge debate in Congress right now. There is a
lot of pressure within Congress to say, "WlIl, since the
casel oad has dropped in half, you obviously don't need as much
noney as we guaranteed you in '94." But states are saying,
"Well, but we are using those funds for very legitimte other
purposes and are actually running programs with it. ... Pulling
back that funding | evel woul d nean defunding certain prograns.”

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renmarked that this is probably why he
won't support the resolution, because he thinks it is the
state's responsibility and not the federal governnent's [to fund
t hese ot her prograns].

Nunber 2152
REPRESENTATIVE JOULE nmade a notion to nove SJR 21 [CSSJIR
21(HES)] from commttee with individual recommendations and the

attached zero fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Stevens, G ssna,
Joule, WIson, and Dyson voted in favor of noving the
resol ution. Representati ve Coghi | | vot ed agai nst it.

[ Representative Kohring was absent.] Therefore, CSSIJR 21(HES)
noved from the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Conmttee by a vote of 5-1.

HB 173- SCREENI NG NEVWBORNS FOR HEARI NG ABI LI TY

CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 173, "An Act relating to establishing a
screening, tracking, and intervention program related to the
hearing ability of newborns and infants; providing an exenption
to licensure as an audiologist for certain persons performng

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- April 17, 2001



hearing screening tests; relating to insurance coverage for
newborn and infant hearing screening; and providing for an
effective date.” [Before the conmittee was the original bill
al though there was a proposed conmttee substitute (CS) in the
packets; version 22-LS0003\B, Lauterbach, 4/11/01, it was never
adopt ed.

Number 2199

CHAIR DYSON called for an at-ease at 3:55 p.m The neeting was
call ed back to order at 3:56 p.m

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE stated, as sponsor of the bill, that each
year in Al aska approximately 10,000 babies are born. Around 30
to 40 of these children will have sone sort of congenital

hearing loss. Hearing loss, he said, is nore prevalent than any
ot her congenital abnormality for which newborns are routinely
screened. Wt hout newborn screening, the average age at which
children in the United States are identified with hearing |oss

is 12 to 25 nonths - after critical w ndows of |earning have
passed. If left undetected, hearing loss can result in lifelong
delays in |anguage, cognitive, socio-enotional, and academc

devel opnent .

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE explained that [HB 173] does three things.
It requires testing of infants before release froma hospital or
within 30 days, except if hospitals have less than 50 births a
year or birthing centers refer for screening within 30 days; the
devel opnent of a reporting and tracking system for newborn and
infants; and intervention by providing parents with information
through which they could get services if their child has a
hearing loss, as well as providing general information about
hearing testing of infants.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE explained that in the |ast several years 32
states have passed legislation requiring newborn hearing
screening. Three or nore states test on a voluntary basis, and
four states are considering legislation this year. He added
that there is a new fiscal note for [the bill], which is $90, 000
a year, whereas the old fiscal note, was over $500, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE of fered Anendnent 1, which read:

Page 5, subsection (g), lines 14-18
DELETE

TAPE 01-44, SIDE B

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- April 17, 2001



CHAIR DYSON asked, if [the committee] were to accept
Representative Joule's anendnent, whether the fiscal note would
go away.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE responded that the change in the fiscal
note is the result of deleting the one section [referred to in
t he amendnent].

CHAI R DYSON asked how nuch the old fiscal note was.
Nunber 2275

CHRI STINE HESS, Staff to Representative Reggie Joule, Al aska
State Legislature, answered that it was al nost $600, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE explained that if newborns who are
ot herwi se covered by sone form of insurance, such as IHS (Indian
Health Service) or Denali KidCare, are born in a hospital where
there are 50 or nore births, they automatically get screened
within the first 30 days. The cost that goes away is for those
children who were not covered by one form or another of
i nsurance, which is about four to six children yearly.

CHAI R DYSON asked if Denali KidCare covers hearing screenings
for newborns.

M5. HESS answered yes.

CHAIR DYSON asked if nost of the health care policies that
famlies have in Al aska cover it.

M5. HESS responded that several hospitals are screening right
now and have reported that they haven't had any problens wth
the insurance covering it. It has been part of a newborn
heari ng- screeni ng package. The hearing screening is included
with everything that is done now with the newborn. Eventual |y,
she said, it will get its own nedical code. However, the bil
provides that in certain circunstances the insurance is going to
have to provide that as part of the insurance coverage.

CHAI R DYSON asked what those circunstances woul d be.
M5. HESS responded that on page 3, lines 9 through 14, it states
that if the plan covers services provided to wonen during

pregnancy and childbirth and the dependents of a covered
individual, it should include the hearing screening and a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 17, 2001



followup if required. She added that the test is relatively
i nexpensive, ranging from $45 to $100, and takes about five
m nut es.

CHAI R DYSON asked about the deletion Representative Joule wants
to make on page 5.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE stated that the deletion of subsection (g)
elimnates a large part of the fiscal note for a relatively
smal | group of children. He said he felt it was nore inportant
at this point to get the larger nunber of kids taken care of and
to get the bill nmoving. In discussing the bill with [commttee]
menbers, he said, there is a huge concern about a |arge fiscal
not e.

CHAI R DYSON asked if nost hospitals are already doing this.
REPRESENTATI VE JOULE answer ed no.

CHAI R DYSON asked if by deleting [subsection] (g), coverage for
the people who fall through that crack woul d be eli m nated.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE said he was correct.

M5. HESS stated that from discussions the Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services (DHSS), a couple of things would happen. She
sai d [DHSS] is not actually sure of the statistical data
regardi ng how many kids are uninsured with Denali KidCare. She
said "we're" hoping it's only two to four kids and that sone
nonprofit groups such as the Lion's Cub and Rotary will help

The hospitals will help with the hearing screenings. The ot her
good news, she said, is that ILP (Infant Learning Program is
currently funded for $700,000; therefore, those kids would go on
to the ILP waitlist and hopefully get services through that.

Number 2028

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said she is thinking about her area,
Wangell, and asked how much the nachines that do the tests
cost; she noted that right now Wangell's hospital does not have
anything |ike that. She also said she is concerned that since
the hospital doesn't [have the machine] but has 30 days to nake
sure the patient gets referred, the patient would have to spend
noney to fly sonepl ace el se.

M5. HESS responded that the testing equipnment costs anywhere
from $9,000 to $15, 000. There is a program with the National

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- April 17, 2001



Hearing Associ ation whereby hospitals can [l ease] the equipnent
while they get started, for free. There is also, she said, a
portabl e device, which can be easily transported. Therefore, a
couple of hospitals could get together and share a hearing-

screeni ng devi ce. Some rural states are actually doing this,
and other states use volunteers to do the testing, which reduces
the cost. She added that there is a lot of federal grant noney

avai | abl e now.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked, since the old fiscal plan was
$600, 000 and this fiscal plan is $95,000 and the only difference
is tw to four children who will not be tested, whether that
neans it costs $500,000 for two to four children.

M5. HESS responded yes, but it is not only for the testing; it

is for the intervention, all follow ups, and any hearing
devi ces.
Number 1931

KAREN PEARSON, Director of Public Health, Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services, cane forth and explained that the title of the
initial bill states that it provides for screening tests and
i ntervention. The three to four children would have been the
ones W thout insurance who needed the full-blow intervention

There is an unknown nunber of Kkids, represented by about
$200,000 in the original fiscal note, who don't have a paynent

source for their screening. The remainder for the fiscal note
was for the intervention as well as travel for kids who live in
a place where screening or intervention is not avail able. She

stated that the current fiscal note is what is needed to put the
data system together to do the tracking. Then, she expl ained,
in 2005 the grant for the staff goes away so there is a request
for half a staff person to keep the project going.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how nany screenings would be
mandated to Al aska right now under this bill

MS. Pearson responded that she does not have that infornmation.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated that he is concerned that places
li ke Wangell, Kotzebue, or Barrow, where they have health care
facilities, will be mandated a $9,000 to $12,000 nachi ne, which
seens like a pretty heavy load. He added that this is not going
to have a snmall inpact on health care facilities.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 17, 2001



MS. PEARSON stated that the technology is changing quite rapidly
and she thinks the costs will be com ng down. She added t hat
there is a lot of interest in this area at the federal |eve
because they understand the inpact on the education system and
justice systemof children not being able to hear.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked what would be acconplished wth
this equipnent that a good famly doctor would not be able to
tell when exam ning a baby.

Nunmber 1787

HEATHER ALLI O Parent, cane forth and stated that to test for
[ hearing | oss, doctors] originally put a sound into a baby's ear
and then neasured the anmount of sound that cane back out. That
can tell whether or not a child has a hearing loss, but it can't
tell the degree of the hearing loss. A second test can then be
performed, which is called an ABR (auditory brainstem response)
test or a BAER (brainstem auditory evoked response) test, during
which el ectrodes are put on the head. Sound is admtted into
the ear and the brain's response to the sound is tested.

CHAI R DYSON asked how that has gone for her famly.
MS. ALLIO shared her story with the commttee:

My first son was diagnhosed at six nonths. In fact,
[apart from a famly dog that barked and barked and
barked and ny son never responded, he was not tested
at birth. He was then fitted with the hearing aids.
Since then - he's three - he [knows] well over 1,500
signs [of sign |anguage]; he's got sounds that he can
make that represent words. Had he not had those
hearing aids at six nonths, he would have m ssed an
awful lot of that. My second son, Brady (ph) was
tested at one week old, here at the audiol ogist, and
found that he had a | oss of sonme sorts. So we went to
Seattl e and had the second test done.

CHAI R DYSON asked if this is hereditary in her famly.

MS. ALLI O answered no. She continued stating that nost kids are
not caught at six nonths |ike her son was. Most are not caught
until age two; therefore, they have m ssed out on that two-year
wi ndow of the ability to hear and the ability to learn sign
| anguage.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- April 17, 2001



Nunber 1675

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Pearson what [ Al aska's] situation would be
if parents were unwilling to have their kids tested and if that
woul d be considered a child-in-need-of-aid case.

MS. PEARSON responded that there is the potential of being asked
what the inpact on the child is if there is no religious basis
for the choice of nedical care.

CHAIR DYSON asked if it would be the sanme situation if it were
di agnosed and [the parents] refused to do anything renedial.

MS. PEARSON stated that she thinks so.

M5. HESS responded that the bill provides for an exenption if
the parent objects, for exanple, due to religious practices.
She added that DFYS (Division of Famly and Youth Services)
could step in if a parent refuses to take appropriate nedical
pr ocedures.

Number 1574

LI SA ONENS, Audiologist and Speech Pathologist, testified via
t el econf erence. She explained that there is audiol ogy coverage
for alnost every area of the state right now, and al nost every
audi ol ogi st has one of the types of systens being used, that can
travel . She said she thinks there are three areas right now
that have the equipnent avail able; however, they are working on
getting grants to cover the costs through state task forces.
The second point is that for 50 percent of children there is no
known cause for hearing loss. The average age of identification
right now, in states that do not have newborn hearing screening,
is 18 nonths to 2 years. In states such as Col orado, Rhode
Island, and Hawaii that have been doing newborn hearing
screenings for the past six or seven years, the average age of
identification is lowered to 3 nonths of age. She said there
are many studies showing that children who are identified by 3
nont hs of age and given hearing aids and early intervention are
devel opi ng | anguage and communi cation skills at age-appropriate
| evel s, versus children who are identified at 18 nonths to 2
years who end up having a reading |evel of third grade.

M5. OVENS explained that a child being identified at 18 nonths
to 2 years hears virtually nothing for those first 18 nonths or
2 years of life. Information on brain research shows that there
is a critical tinme for brain developnent, and if children mss

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- April 17, 2001



that window it is hard for them to ever fully develop those
skills. In states that have been doing these prograns, kids are
going on to preschool and kindergarten and are not requiring the
speci al assistance that they would need if they were identified
later in life, which is a huge cost savings.

CHAI R DYSON asked, if this passes, whether Ms. Oaens woul d get
nor e busi ness.

M5. OWENS answered probably not; she said [her practice] is
pretty full as it is. She stated that this would protect kids
who are m ssing out on hearing.

CHAI R DYSON asked what percentage of the newborns in [Al aska]
are not getting screened now.

M5. OVWENS responded that right now Providence Hospital is the
primary birthing center and is screening all babies, as are
Col unmbi a National Regional and the Native hospitals. She said
None is now screening and Kotzebue is going to start screening

within the next nonth. She said the problem in sone of the
rural areas is not necessarily the equi pnent but the training of
the hospital staff. Therefore, nost of the audiologists are

trying to get to those areas to provide appropriate training and
hel p themto get the funding for equipnent.

CHAI R DYSON asked who pays [the audiol ogists] to do that.

M5. OWENS stated that nobody does; she is doing it on a
vol unt eer basi s.

Nunber 1320
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how the fol |l ow up works now.

M5. OWNENS explained that typically babies are screened during
their first day of life in a hospital. If they fail the
screening, the hospital wll try to rescreen before they are
di scharged or they are screened within the first week of life
when the parents bring them back to the hospital. Chi | dren who
fail both screenings, are referred to an audiologist for a ful
di agnostic test, who wuld then confirm the [hospital's]
di agnostic testing. From that point, they would be referred to
the ILP and to the Alaska Early Intervention Hearing Resource
Pr ogram which provides parents wth sign |anguage and
educati onal support.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- April 17, 2001



[HB 173 was held over. ]

HB 174- MENTAL HEALTH | NFORVMATI ON AND RECORDS

CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 174, "An Act relating to nental heal t h
informati on and records; and providing for an effective date."

CHAIR DYSON called for an at-ease at 4:29 p.m The neeting was
call ed back to order at 4:31 p.m

Nunber 1070

REPRESENTATI VE HUGH FATE, Al aska State Legislature, came forth
as sponsor on HB 174. He stated that this bill is a result of
the Legislative Budget & Audit Commttee's recommendation to the
state auditor and the Departnment of Health & Social Services.

House Bill 174 allows the state to better track direct grant
noney given to a comrunity nmental health provider. He stated
that the bill does two things: it conplies with the auditor's

report for reporting actual consunmer data, and it hol ds agencies
harmess for being sued by the consuner for breach of
confidentiality if that should ever occur. He added that this
i s about accountability for state grant funds.

CHAI R DYSON asked whet her sonebody who br eaks t hat
confidentiality would not be liable for it.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE responded yes, that this holds harm ess an
agency if a suit should occur by a consunmer for a breach of
confidentiality.

Number 0974

ELMER LI NDSTROM Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Health & Social Services [DHSS], cane forth and
stated that there has been a requirenent in regulation for a
nunber of vyears for providers and conmunity nental health
centers to provide client information. Cenerally, they have not
conpl i ed. He explained that one of the reasons they have not
done so is because of a fear that wthout clear, explicit
authority for them to share this information with the [DHSS],
they would be subject to suit by a consuner. This bill gives
immunity to the conmunity nental health center that would be
required to provide [DHSS] the data under this bill.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- April 17, 2001



CHAI R DYSON asked if there is very limted scope in this bill,
which gives [the conmunity nmental health centers] imunity if
they are providing this confidential information.

MR. LINDSTROM replied that this is specifically for providing
the information to [ DHSS] .

CHAI R DYSON asked if [DHSS] will treat [the information] well.

MR. LI NDSTROM answered that there is a l|lot of confidential
information in his departnent. He stated that in his ten years
working for the departnment he doesn't recall ever being called
"on the carpet” by the legislature for disclosing confidential

i nformation. On the other hand, he said, he gets questions
about why [the depart nent ] won' t rel ease confidenti al
i nformation. He added that this is a normal bit of his
busi ness.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the infornmation are held in electronic or
paper files.

MR. LI NDSTROM responded that files exist in both fornmats. The
goal in this programultinmately would be an el ectronic exchange
of information that is encrypted.

CHAI R DYSON asked if anyone has every "hacked" into [the files].
MR. LI NDSTROM answered not to his know edge.
Number 0808

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked whether the information being
col | ected about people with nmental health problens is by nanme or
just includes data.

MR. LI NDSTROM answered that it would be client-specific. A
unique identifier would be used for an individual, but it would
be encrypted so [the person] would not be readily identifiable.
He clarified for the committee that [DHSS] funds community
nmental health centers in two ways. One is the grant aid
process, whereby general fund grant dollars are given to
comunity nental health centers to provide nental health
services to clients. He stated that this was the only thing
that existed as recently as eight or nine years ago. In 1992
[DHSS] began allowing them to bill through Medicaid, and the
costs of nental health services billed through Medicaid went
from$0 to $5 million to $10 million to $20 million and are now

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- April 17, 2001



in excess of $50 mllion. The Finance Commttee requested the
original audit, and in noting this growh in the Medicaid
budget, wondered how the funding through Medicaid related to the
funding of the general fund grants. The conclusion of the
audit, he stated, is that they really cannot [relate the
funding], because while [DHSS] gets that client-specific data
very well in the Medicaid system it has not been historically
captured for persons served through those grant dollars that go
to the community nental health centers. He added that this
would give [DHSS] that sanme level of detail for those grant
dollars that have been customarily received through the Medicaid
program

Nunmber 0684
REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked why [ DHSS] woul d need the nane.

MR. LI NDSTROM answered that he believes it gets to the issue of
out comes of individual clients' treatnent. He stated that it is
not unusual and that it is the same data received on Medicaid
clients as a nmatter of course.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked if it is possible to have nunbers
rat her than nanmes [in the data].

MR LI NDSTROM responded that that is the goal. [ The
i nformation] would be electronically transmtted and encrypted.

Nunmber 0578

ANNE HENRY, Special Projects Coordinator, D vision of Mental
Health & Developnental Disabilities, Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services, cane forth and stated that the unique
identifier used on the data that are collected from providers
include the person's initials, date of birth, and the last four
digits of the social security nunber. She added that for the
grant work, [DHSS] does not <collect any nanes. When [ DHSS]
receives the information from providers, it is in encrypted
form which is then decrypted [by DHSS] and stored back in an
encrypted form

CHAI R DYSON asked if [DHSS] has been unable to figure out how
the public noney was being spent or the desired outcones that
wer e happeni ng because they couldn't track individual clients.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit Division,
Al aska State Legislature, answered that he was correct. She

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- April 17, 2001



stated that the auditors could show what the trends were in
Medi cai d, what services were being provided, and what clients in
terms of age or Jlocation services were being provided for.
After discussing it with [DHSS] they could see where the growh
was. As a result of the audit, she said, one of the things that
changed was the rate. There was a leveling off and, in sone
cases, decreased costs in certain activities. However, she
said, the auditors hit a blank wall when it came to the state
grants because they did not know who was being served, what
services were being provided, or if sone of the clients were

al so being billed under Medicaid or private insurance. Thi s,
she explained, conmes down to the unique identifier. From an
accountability standpoint it is necessary to know that the sane
person isn't billing insurance, Medicaid, and the state grant.

She remarked that [the auditors'] conclusion was that a fee for
service and a grant program are inherently inconpatible, and
that one way around that is to get the sanme data for state-
funded clients as for Medicaid clients.

CHAI R DYSON asked Representative Fate if he or anyone in his
office has talked with any of the nental health consuners to see
if they would take exception to this bill

Number 0300

REPRESENTATI VE FATE answered that they haven't. He noted that
there is an ongoing lawsuit that involves a Fairbanks comunity
mental health center. That | awsuit was brought because of the
nmere fact that [the nmental health center] was |iable because of
its requirenent for subm ssions of certain confidential client
i nformati on. He stated that if this bill were to pass, this
| awsui t woul d be dropped.

CHAI R DYSON remarked that it is his sense that this is nore of a
| egal issue than a health issue and perhaps it should be sent on
to the consideration of the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.
He added that if that occurs then he wll wite a note to the
chai rman of the House Judiciary Standing Committee that [ DHSS]
should give notice to and an opportunity for any of the
representatives of the nmental health consumer community to weigh
inonit.

Nunber 0223

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA nade a nmotion to nove HB 174 from
commttee with individual recommendati ons and the attached zero

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- April 17, 2001



fiscal note. There being no objection, HB 174 noved from the
House Heal th, Education and Soci al Services Standing Conmittee.

HB 124- NURS. HOVE/ ASSI STED LIV. EMPLOYEES/ VI SI TOR

CHAI R DYSON announced that the last item of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 124, "An Act prohibiting nursing facilities and
assisted living honmes from enploying or allowing access by
persons with certain crimnal backgrounds, with exceptions.”

KEVIN HAND, Staff to Representative Andrew Hal cro, Al aska State
Legi slature, came forth on behalf of the sponsor of HB 124. He
noted that the nobst current conmmttee substitute (CS) draft is
Version P. He explained that HB 124 is a barrier-crine piece of
| egislation that was brought about in part because of a
| egislative audit, which nentioned that the Pioneers' Hone

enpl oys several sex offenders. Version P renoves a nunber of
contentious points that were raised by various parties. For
exanpl e, contract workers, non-enployees, and volunteers would
be renpved from being subject to a background check. It also

removes crinmes in which the victimwas a resident [of a nursing
hone] from the background check requirenent

TAPE 01-45, SIDE A

MR. HAND continued, stating that [Version P] adds Section 2 on
page 3, |line 11, which reads, "(d) A nursing facility
adm ni strator shal | provi de saf eguar ds to ensure t hat
contractors, volunteers, and other persons entering the nursing
facility do not abuse, neglect, or exploit a resident of the
facility." He added that this has a mrror section for assisted
living facilities later in the bill.

Nunber 0101

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked if the concern about facilities
where the owner lives in the sane househol d was taken care of.

MR. HAND answered that it has been addressed by a slight change;

however, there is not a total agreenment on it. Part of it is
because it is under a receivership clause in the latter part of
the bill. From the standpoint of the admnistration, it

woul dn't be people taking physical possession of the hone; it
woul d just be adm nistration of the services of those residents.
The other option would be that those people are just kicked out
in the street because the governnment would be forced to either

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- April 17, 2001



shut it down or take it over, the alternative being that someone
woul d conme in on a daily basis and run the hone.

CHAI R DYSON stated that in the last hearing of this bill he had
a question concerning what should be done with a new hire that
just "got off the boat,"” since there would be no instantaneous
crimnal check. He asked if this was addressed in the current
revi si ons.

MR. HAND responded that it was point that was discussed at
| ength regarding how in-state workers woul d have sone background
information available wth nursing home admnistrators in
assisted living hone facilities. [ The administrators] were al
in agreement that that point would neke it conpletely
unwor kabl e, and they would all voice opposition if that portion
wer e incl uded.

Nunber 0317

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA remarked that she has recently |earned
that personnel in a few of the nursing hones in her area
[ Anchorage] nmke trips to foreign countries to get staff,
because there is such a shortage. She asked what is done in
situations like that and if there is any kind of reciprocal

i nformati on exchange with foreign countri es.

MR HAND replied that as for the person's background and
crimnal history, that question may be better suited for
| i censi ng. He added that these people are subject to the sane
background checks; however, the availability of that information
woul d seemingly be difficult, although it is ascertainable.

CHAI R DYSON asked where the bill is going next.

MR HAND stated that it is going to [the House Finance
Comm ttee]. He explained that it is actually referred to [the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee] next; however, the chairman
has waived it in lieu of a new House finance Commttee referral.

CHAIR DYSON asked M. Hand how he would feel about adding on
page 3, line 13, after "volunteers,” "new hires from out of
state or out of country,". He stated that this establishes the
duty of the admnistrator to take care of it.

MR. HAND responded that he sees no [problem with adding that
| anguage] .

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -29- April 17, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA remarked that she thinks this is worth
i nvestigating. She stated that she has heard some fol ks who
have relatives in nursing hones say that when they |ooked for
nursing honmes they discovered that the people who appeared to be
nost concerned about the elderly were in fact from other
countries.

ELMER LI NDSTROM Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Health & Social Services, remarked that there is
paral l el |anguage relative to assisted l|living [hones] beginning
on page 5, line 31. He stated that he does not think that this
woul d be a neani ngl ess anmendnent. The |icensing agency would go
into a nursing home or an assisted living hone and will want to
see concrete evidence of policy procedures that have been put in
pl ace to inplenment that section.

Nunber 0740

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA nmde a notion to adopt Conceptual
Amendnent 1, adding, after "volunteers,” on page 3, line 13, and
on page 6, line 1, "new hires from out of state and out of
country,".

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL made a notion to adopt the proposed CS
for HB 124, version 22-LS008\P, Lauterbach, 4/5/01. There being
no objection, Version P was before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA repeated her notion to adopt Conceptual
Amendnent 1. There being no objection, Conceptual Anmendnent 1
was adopt ed.

Nunber 0890

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL referred to the energency involuntary
term nation of contract on page 8, which states, "with |less than
30 days' notice". He asked if the less than 30 days could nean
i mredi ately, for exanple, if sonebody becones violent.

MR. HAND responded that it is not necessarily inmediate. He

stated that this deals with the termnation of a contract. | f
sonmeone were to grow violent in a hone, he or she could be
renoved i nmmediately. The home could then nove forward wth

termnating the person's contract, which could take [as little
as] 72 hours.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- April 17, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the receivership of the assisted
living hone, referenced on page 12, Section 15, has been run by
the assisted |iving honme organi zation.

MR, HAND answered that it has been a point of extensive
di scussi on; however, not everyone agrees wth how it has been
witten.

Number 1049
ALI SON ELCGEE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,

Departnent of Admnistration, cane forth and stated that the
receivership provision is a very last recourse and would only be

used if there were no other alternatives. One of the things
heard from sone of the assisted living admnistrators is that
maybe it could be Iimted froma size standpoint. However, this

is a situation in which there is not any other capacity in the
comunity to deal with a long-term care situation. She stated
that the first choice, if there were problens with the hone,
would be to relocate the residents from the honme into another
environnent and not to take over the operation of the hone
itself. She added that if there is a small home in a community
where that is the only hone, this may take a little |onger than
if it were a honme in a community with a variety of alternatives.
She remarked that this provides sone protection to the
adm nistrators of these assisted |living honmes, because it brings
a neutral third party into it. The licensing agency would have
to go to court to denonstrate that it has exhausted every other
possibility in ternms of renedying the problens of the assisted
| i ving hone operations.

Nunber 1138

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL nade a notion to nove the CS for HB 124,
22-1L.S0087\ P, Lauterbach, 4/5/01, as anended, from commttee wth
i ndi vidual recommendations and the attached zero fiscal note.
There being no objection, CSHB 124(HES) noved from the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 5:09 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -31- April 17, 2001



